
Legal and Democratic Services

LICENSING AND PLANNING POLICY COMMITTEE
Thursday 22 October 2020 at 7.00 pm

Place: Remote Meeting

PLEASE NOTE: this will be a ‘virtual meeting’.

The link to the meeting is: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6058802059658860302
Webinar ID: 985-020-539

Telephone (listen-only): 00 3713 5012, Telephone Access Code:328-872-351 

The members listed below are summoned to attend the Licensing and Planning Policy 
Committee meeting, on the day and at the time and place stated, to consider the business set 
out in this agenda.

Councillor David Reeve (Chair)
Councillor Clive Woodbridge (Vice-
Chair)
Councillor Monica Coleman
Councillor Neil Dallen
Councillor Robert Foote

Councillor Chris Frost
Councillor Liz Frost
Councillor Rob Geleit
Councillor Julie Morris
Councillor Phil Neale

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive

For further information, please contact Democratic Services, email: 
democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk or tel:  01372 732000

Public Document Pack

https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/6058802059658860302


Public information

Please note that this meeting will be a ‘virtual meeting’
This meeting will be held online and is open to the press and public to attend as an observer 
using free GoToWebinar software, or by telephone.
A link to the online address for this meeting is provided on the first page of this agenda and on 
the Council’s website. A telephone connection number is also provided on the front page of this 
agenda as a way to observe the meeting, and will relay the full audio from the meeting as an 
alternative to online connection.
Information about the terms of reference and membership of this Committee are available on 
the Council’s website. The website also provides copies of agendas, reports and minutes.
Agendas, reports and minutes for the Committee are also available on the free Modern.Gov app 
for iPad, Android and Windows devices. For further information on how to access information 
regarding this Committee, please email us at Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk.

Exclusion of the Press and the Public 
There are no matters scheduled to be discussed at this meeting that would appear to disclose 
confidential or exempt information under the provisions Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
(Access to Information) Act 1985. Should any such matters arise during the course of 
discussion of the below items or should the Chairman agree to discuss any other such matters 
on the grounds of urgency, the Committee will wish to resolve to exclude the press and public 
by virtue of the private nature of the business to be transacted.

Questions from the Public
Questions from the public are permitted at meetings of the Committee. Any person wishing to 
ask a question at a meeting of the Committee must register to do so, as set out below. 
Up to 30 minutes will be set aside for written or oral questions from any member of the public 
who lives, works, attends an educational establishment or owns or leases land in the Borough 
on matters within the Terms of Reference of the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee 
which may not include matters listed on a Committee Agenda.
All questions whether written or oral must consist of one question only, they cannot consist of 
multi parts or of a statement.
The question or topic may not relate to a specific planning application or decision under the 
Planning Acts, a specific application for a licence or permit of any kind, the personal affairs of an 
individual, or a matter which is exempt from disclosure or confidential under the Local 
Government Act 1972.  Questions which in the view of the Chairman are vexatious or frivolous 
will not be accepted.
To register to ask a question at a meeting of the Committee, please contact Democratic 
Services, email: democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk, telephone: 01372 732000. 
Written questions must be received by Democratic Services by noon on the tenth working day 
before the day of the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, 8 October 2020
Registration for oral questions is open until noon on the second working day before the day of 
the meeting. For this meeting this is Noon, 20 October 2020

https://democracy.epsom-ewell.gov.uk/mgListCommittees.aspx?bcr=1
mailto:Democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk
mailto:democraticservices@epsom-ewell.gov.uk


AGENDA

1. QUESTION TIME  

To take any questions from members of the Public.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members are asked to declare the existence and nature of any Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests in respect of any item of business to be considered at the 
meeting.

3. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

The Committee is asked to confirm as a true record the Minutes of the Meeting 
of the Committee held on 10 September 2020 (to follow) and to authorise the 
Chairman to sign them.

4. WHITE PAPER: PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE  (Pages 5 - 26)

To respond to the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government 
(MHCLG) published Planning for the Future White Paper on 6 August 2020.



This page is intentionally left blank



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
22 October 2020

WHITE PAPER: PLANNING FOR THE FUTURE

Head of Service: Viv Evans, Head of Planning
Wards affected: (All Wards);
Urgent Decision?(yes/no) No
If yes, reason urgent decision 
required:
Appendices (attached): Appendix 1: EEBC response to the White 

Paper: Planning for the Future

Summary

To respond to the Ministry of Housing, Communities & Local Government (MHCLG) 
published Planning for the Future White Paper on 6 August 2020. 

Recommendation (s)
The Committee is asked to:

(1) Note and approve the draft response to the government’s White Paper 
“Planning for the Future”.

1 Reason for Recommendation

1.1 The White Paper: Planning for the future was published on 6 August 2020 
for a 12 week consultation to the 29 October 2020. Comments are invited 
on the numerous proposals that are likely to have significant impact on the 
Council’s Planning service and it is important that the Council responds 
accordingly outlining its concerns.

2 Background

2.1 The White Paper comprises a number of proposals set out under five 
main headline proposals, these are summarised in paragraph 1.15 to 1.20 
in the White paper. Under the five headline proposals are a number of 
detailed proposals, these are:

1. To streamline the planning process with more democracy taking place 
more effectively at the plan making stage, and replacing the entire 
corpus of plan-making law in England.

 Simplifying the role of Local Plans with rules rather than 
general policies for development

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
22 October 2020

 Local Plans to categorise land into three categories-1.growth, 
2.renewal and 3.protected.

 Local councils re-invent the ambition, depth and breadth with 
which they engage with communities

 Local Plans to deliver nationally-determined, binding housing 
requirement

 Local Plans to be subject to a single statutory “sustainable 
development” test

 Local Plans to be visual and map-based, standardised, based 
on the latest digital technology, and supported by a new 
standard template

 Local authorities and the Planning Inspectorate will be 
required through legislation to meet a statutory timetable (of 
no more than 30 months in total)

 Decision-making would be faster and more certain, with 
statutory deadlines

 enforcement powers and sanctions strengthened with the 
move to a rule based system

 Government commitment to a comprehensive resources and 
skills strategy for the planning sector to support the 
implementation of the reforms

2. Radical, digital-first approach to modernise the planning process. This 
means moving from a process based on documents to a process 
driven by data.

o Supporting local planning authorities to use digital tools to 
support a new civic engagement process for local plans and 
decision-making

o Insist local plans are built on standardised, digitally consumable 
rules and data

o Standardise, and make openly and digitally accessible, other 
critical datasets that the planning system relies on

o Work with tech companies and local authorities to modernise 
the software used for making and case-managing a planning 
application

3. To bring a new focus on design and sustainability

Page 6

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
22 October 2020

o Ensure the planning system supports efforts to combat climate 
change and maximises environmental benefits

o Facilitate ambitious improvements in the energy efficiency 
standards for buildings

o Ask for beauty where new development should be beautiful, 
and create a ‘net gain’ not just ‘no net harm’,

o introduction of a fast-track for beauty

o Introduce a quicker, simpler framework for assessing 
environmental impacts and enhancement opportunities

o Expect design guidance and codes to be prepared locally and 
to be based on genuine community involvement 

o Establish a new body to support the delivery of design codes in 
every part of the country

o Ensure that each local planning authority has a chief officer for 
design and place-making,

o Updating Homes England’s strategic objectives to give greater 
emphasis to delivering beautiful places

o Continue to protect our historic buildings and areas while 
ensuring the consent framework.

4. To improve infrastructure delivery in all parts of the country and ensure 
developers play their part,

o The Community Infrastructure Levy and the current system of 
planning obligations will be reformed as a nationally-set value-
based flat rate charge (‘the Infrastructure Levy’).

o affordable housing to be part of the levy

o local authorities to determine how developer contributions are 
used

o extending the scope of the consolidated Infrastructure Levy and 
remove exemptions from it

5. To ensure more land is available for the homes and development 
people and communities need, and to support renewal of our town and 
city centres.

o A new nationally-determined, binding housing requirement 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
22 October 2020

o To provide better information to local communities, to promote 
competition amongst developers, and to assist SMEs and new 
entrants to the sector,

o Ensure publicly-owned land and public investment in 
development supports thriving places

2.2 The white paper is published with 26 questions which the government is 
inviting views on. The Council’s draft response is to be set out in Appendix 
1

3 Risk Assessment

Legal or other duties

3.1 Impact Assessment

3.1.1 The proposed changes are likely to have significant impact on the 
Council’s Local Plan programme and wider day to day planning 
decisions, it is important that the Council responds accordingly 
outlining its concerns.

3.2 Crime & Disorder

3.2.1 None arising from this report

3.3 Safeguarding

3.3.1 None arising from this report

3.4 Dependencies

3.4.1 None arising from this report

3.5 Other

3.5.1 None arising from this report

4 Financial Implications

4.1 The proposed changes are likely to have significant impact on the 
Council’s Local Plan programme and day to day planning decisions. The 
proposals outline significant reforms in the planning system which is likely 
result in unexpected additional workload that will affect internal and 
external resources, including the appointment of new roles e.g a chief 
officer of design and costs associated with new digitised systems. Officers 
will closely monitor proposals and consider the impacts.

4.2 Section 151 Officer’s comments: Resourcing and financial implications 
will need to be considered as they arise.

5 Legal Implications

Page 8

Agenda Item 4



Licensing and Planning Policy Committee
22 October 2020

5.1 None arising from the contents of this report. 

5.2 Monitoring Officer’s comments: None arising from the contents of this 
report. 

6 Policies, Plans & Partnerships

6.1 Council’s Key Priorities: The following Key Priorities are engaged: 

6.2 Green and Vibrant, Safe and Well, Cultural and Creative, Opportunity and 
Prosperity, Smart and Connected, Effective Council

6.3 The Planning service, including the Local Plan and day to day planning 
decisions are fundamental towards delivering the Council’s Visions and 
Objectives identified in the Four Year Plan. The White Paper reforms will 
have a significant impact.

6.4 Service Plans: The matter is not included within the current Service 
Delivery Plan.

6.5 Climate & Environmental Impact of recommendations: None arising 
from the contents of this report

6.6 Sustainability Policy & Community Safety Implications: None arising 
from the contents of this report

6.7 Partnerships: None arising from the contents of this report

7 Background papers

7.1 The documents referred to in compiling this report are as follows:

Previous reports:

 None

Other papers:

 MHCLG White Paper: Planning for the Future published on the 
Government’s website on 6 August 2020.

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/planning-for-the-future


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Planning White Paper August 2020: The Questions 

MHCLG published the Planning for the Future White Paper on 6 August 2020.

Pillar One – Planning for development
Q1. What three words do you associate most with the planning system in England? 
Political
Complex (because of the need to balance issues and make balanced decision weighing up a range 
of Planning decisions).
Contentious
Q2. Do you get involved with planning decisions in your local area? [Yes / No] 
Yes, this is a response from Epsom and Ewell Borough Council. 

Q2(a). If no, why not? [Don’t know how to / It takes too long / It’s too complicated / I don’t care 
/ Other – please specify] 

N/A

Q3. Our proposals will make it much easier to access plans and contribute your views to 
planning decisions. How would you like to find out about plans and planning proposals in the 
future? [Social media / Online news / Newspaper / By post / Other – please specify] 

The first part of this question is a statement rather than a question. In response to the second 
part of the question, the Council would support a range of methods to ensure the greatest access, 
largest audiences and that is most effective. 

 Social media: should be utilised, it’s not resource intensive, it’s quick and has the potential 
to capture a wide audience- however not everyone has access to the internet and it 
cannot be sole source of information. In addition to this, as a platform for discussion, 
social media has its drawbacks, if responses are not moderated there is a risk of 
inappropriate comments being published. Moderating comments requires sufficient 
resources to manage information. Social media has it’s place but as a supplemental 
facility.

 Online news / Newspaper: the uptake of newspapers have generally declining in recent 
times, the cost of placing notices in newspapers can be expensive and it’s hard to know 
the effectiveness it has.

 By post: Although resource intensive, letters to Neighbours on individual planning 
applications is the most direct and effective in getting the information to those directly 
affected. However if the proposal is to focus consultation at the Plan making stage, then it 
may be the case that letters will be needed to all households. At the moment, most 
authorities will only send letters to those who have registered to receive or be notified of 
the information at plan making stage. Sending letters out at the plan making stage will 
incur significant costs and resources but may be necessary if all consultation will be 
frontloaded at plan making stage and streamlined at planning application stage. 
Borough wide newsletters could be an alternative to formal letters but this would need to 
be distributed to all households.

 Other methods include public displays/exhibitions, site notices, posters/leaflets at public 
buildings, meeting with stakeholders. All of which due to the pandemic have temporarily 
stopped or may have proceeded with additional precautions

Page 11

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



 Email: Has minimal physical resource implications and provides a quicker communication 
method compared with postal communication although it requires careful monitoring and 
management to avoid data breaches and potentially requires quicker response 
turnaround times which has implications on team resources overall.  There are also 
potential restrictions around document size, any large documents/files being sent over 
email as these are often incompatible with IT systems which have limitations around 
maximum documents sent over email.

Information on planning should also be proportional to the proposal being considered. All of these 
would generally be supported. 
Q4. What are your top three priorities for planning in your local area? [Building homes for 
young people / building homes for the homeless / Protection of green spaces / The 
environment, biodiversity and action on climate change / Increasing the affordability of housing 
/ The design of new homes and places / Supporting the high street / Supporting the local 
economy / More or better local infrastructure / Protection of existing heritage buildings or 
areas / Other – please specify]
It is difficult to list the top three priorities but in terms of the top Planning priorities the top three 
priorities are considered to be :

 Protection of green spaces 
 The environment, biodiversity and action on climate change 
 Increasing the affordability of housing

In addition the Licensing and Planning Policy Committee and the Council adopted
Six Key Principles to guide the future planning of the borough on 14 November 2019: 

These are underpinned by the Council’s priorities are set out in its Four Year Plan:
These are:

Green and Vibrant
Clean streets, parks and green spaces.
Protected and improved local amenities and an increase in biodiversity
Reduction in Carbon dioxide emissions
Reduction in waste and improved recycling rates
Address air quality
High quality, sustainable and energy efficient buildings which include new green spaces

Safe and Well
Wellbeing is improved and health inequalities are reduced
Reduced levels and impact of crime and anti-social behaviour
Residents feel safe and secure

Cultural & Creative
Strong cultural and creative identity
Shared knowledge of Epsom and Ewell’s unique history
Programme of local community cultural and sporting events

Opportunity & Prosperity
Thriving communities
Progress made on meeting housing needs of the borough
Strong business economy
Thriving town centres offering great shopping, cultural and leisure activities

Page 12

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



Smart & Connected
More sustainable transport options 
Improved digital connectivity
Support networks enabled

Q5. Do you agree that Local Plans should be simplified in line with our proposals? [Yes / No / 
Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]

No. There is definitely room for simplification in the planning system, but the proposals are a 
complete overhaul of an established system and the ideas lack detail and clarity. Therefore the 
Council does not support the proposals in their entirety. It’s difficult to understand why a whole 
system should be scrapped and started from scratch on an unfounded notion that the planning 
system ‘is broken’, being lengthy and complex. Planning is lengthy and complex because that is 
the nature of Planning, it requires the weighing up and balancing of a range of issues, where 
decision making is embedded in local democracy. 

 Nationalising some development management policies is supported and would allow 
consistency throughout. However there is concern that there would be no opportunity for 
any local policies.

 Proposals to streamline planning process with more democracy at plan making stage and 
the suggestion that there will be less opportunity for consultation at the development 
management stage could undermine making balanced decisions at the detailed 
application stage leading to poorly prepared schemes. 

 Whilst restricting democracy at Plan Making may lead to quicker decisions, it is watering 
down the effectiveness of local communities and elected members having a clear role in 
the development management stage. 

 Reducing Local Plans to effectively become a binary rule book removes balanced decision 
making. Planning is not binary.

 Local Plans already include sites for allocation.  This process is lengthy because it requires 
balancing a variety of issues, and planning effectively for growth in a sustainable manner.  
Proposal to divide whole authority areas into 3 binary land categories is not supported.  
Not all areas fit comfortably into these categories and the land categories do not allow a 
flexibility of uses or balanced decision making. 

 Defining all land into broad categories will result unintended consequences e.g. land 
values will be inflated even where there is no realistic prospect of development 
opportunities on a site.

 If the entire area is to be divided into categories then there needs to be more than 3 
categories.

 Whilst a single ‘sustainability test’ is supported, the contents of this single test should 
cover all aspects what is currently covered in the separate tests such as HRA, SA, viability. 
It would therefore be a consolidation of information rather than eliminating the 
assessments altogether.

 Provided there is a clear structure in place and responsibilities of strategic issues are clear, 
co-operation will continue regardless of the duty being in place. The removal of this is 
supported and will hopefully result in more collegial cooperation between authorities and 
key stakeholders.

 Local Plans are already required to include Proposals Map as part of a complete Local 
Plan. Reducing Local Plans to effectively just a map and binary tool to search for sites is 
short sighted and undermines the ability for any balanced decision making at the detailed 

Page 13

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



application stage. It may ultimately mean more permissions granted but there is no 
guarantee that schemes will be delivered.

 The proposed statutory deadline of 30 months for plan making is too ambitious and 
inflexible particularly given the proposal to frontload democracy at this stage. The 
proposal is effectively frontloading the decision on the principle of development of all 
land in the Borough/District whilst at the same time squeezing the amount of time for 
making these important decisions, putting increased pressure on already overstretched 
planning resources.

 The statutory deadline of 30 months does not have regard to the resources the 
complexities of land constraints in the Borough, political/governance structures, evidence 
base needed to make decisions on the suitability of land, specialist knowledge, availability 
of technology. 

 In recent years there have been numerous, frequent changes to the national planning 
system. These changes can often result in delays in the plan making process, especially for 
smaller authorities with more limited resources. Local planning authorities and their 
communities would benefit from a sustained period of consistency in national policy to 
enable Local Plans to be progressed in confidence.

 Local Plan ‘rules’ rather than ‘policies’ may seem a good idea in theory, but it removes any 
element of subjectivity, good or bad. This does not sit comfortably in a system that is 
embedded in local democracy/decision making. 

 Design codes may be appropriate for some areas but there is a question whether they are 
good in all cases, there is a risk of reducing everywhere down to a set of codes which 
could lead to uninspiring places that all look the same.

 Whilst the consultation focuses on duplication of national policies in local plan policies it 
fails to recognise that the local plan is often the delivery mechanism for a variety of 
Council priorities e.g. climate change with all these decisions to be taken centrally, local 
democracy and decision making in planning is being eroded in these proposals

Q6. Do you agree with our proposals for streamlining the development management content of 
Local Plans, and setting out general development management policies nationally? [Yes / No / 
Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]
Not sure. Whilst national development management is generally supported, this would ensure 
consistency and certainty. It is concerning that there will be no opportunity for any development 
management policies at a local level. There are reservations whether national development 
management policies will suffice on their own. At the moment, National policies work because 
they focus on strategic issues and set out the framework for detailed policies to be prepared. It is 
questionable whether national policy will work when drilling down to the details. The devil will be 
in the detail (or lack of it perhaps) whether these alone would be adequate with no further local 
level policies. 

At the moment development management policies are prepared where there are gaps in national 
policy or lack of clarity. Whilst the consultation focuses on what it considers the problem with 
Local Plan policies e.g. potential duplication of national policies in local plan policies it fails to 
point out that the local plan policies do not simply duplicate national guidance, in fact it is written 
in national policy (NPPF) and guidance that policies they should ‘avoid unnecessary duplication’ 
and Inspectors will challenge policies where it is considered that it is simply duplication of national 
policy. Local Development Management policies provide clarity where it is unclear or where 
national policy is silent on matters and whilst there is room for some consolidating at a national 
level, there continues to be a need for some local level policies.

Page 14

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



Local policies are often the delivery mechanism for a variety of Council priorities e.g. climate 
change, if all these decisions are to be made centrally, the concern is that local democracy and 
decision making in planning is being eroded in these proposals. 

The Council would prefer the alternative approach, to allow local authorities flexibility to set 
development management policies but with the exception where the duplicate national policies.
7(a). Do you agree with our proposals to replace existing legal and policy tests for Local Plans 
with a consolidated test of “sustainable development”, which would include consideration of 
environmental impact? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 

Not Sure. It is agreed that the numerous tests/assessments required for Plan Making can be 
confusing, where some of the data and information required for the individual assessments often 
overlap. A consolidated assessment/test is supported. The act of consolidating the information 
will simplify the process without the need to over-engineer what the new test should be. Whilst a 
single ‘sustainability test’ is supported, the contents of this single test should cover the aspects 
that are currently covered in the separate tests such as HRA, SA, viability. 

In terms of the duty to cooperate, provided there is a clear structure in place and responsibilities 
of strategic issues are clear to the relevant bodies, co-operation will continue regardless of the 
duty being in place. 

Deliverability needs to be demonstrated otherwise the Local Plan becomes an irrelevant tool, if 
there is no need to demonstrate deliverability, the local plan becomes aspirational with no 
certainty of anything identified being delivered.

It is agreed that infrastructure planning is integral to plan making however no regard has been 
made to how this is coordinated with plan making. Infrastructure planning requires different 
agencies working together. If Local Authorities are required to prepare Local Plans within a 30 
month deadline, then infrastructure agencies and providers will be consequently held to the same 
deadline- with respect to some infrastructure providers this is not in the Government’s control.  If 
they are unable to engage in the process because of the unreasonable short periods for the 
preparation of Local Plan then there will be a risk that Local Plans are unfit for purpose with 
insufficient evidence/coordination alongside key infrastructure planning. Planning for and 
delivering appropriate infrastructure is a significant factor for local communities in terms of the 
acceptability of new development.

Deliverability of the plan must be the responsibility of all partners, including the development 
industry. There must be tools in place to address the non-delivery of sites within the new planning 
system.
7(b). How could strategic, cross-boundary issues be best planned for in the absence of a formal 
Duty to Cooperate?
The existing duty to co-operate process is cumbersome and contentious and is frequently the 
cause of plans being rejected or paused at the examination stage. The proposal to abandon the 
duty to co-operate requirements is welcomed. There needs to be a clear structure in place where 
those involved are clear on the roles and responsibilities. Historically, cross boundary issues were 
resolved at a regional level through Regional Spatial Strategies. Local Enterprise Partnerships have 
to some extent taken over this role but perhaps in an unofficial informal structure. None of the 
past structures proved effective either. It may be useful for Government to identify a larger 
regional approach which co-ordinates only the largest infrastructure requirement where national 
significant infrastructure plans would affect Local Plan making and the creation of forums where 
those authorities in these areas can meet regularly to discuss and share information. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



Infrastructure issues often raise cross boundary issues at the local level. This may be best 
addressed through Infrastructure Delivery Plans and a requirement for collaborative working 
between local authorities as well as infrastructure providers.

Also in the context of Government’s proposal to set national development management policies 
and to mandate the housing need requirements, this will reduce the need for ‘duty to cooperate’ 
on certain matters which will be now decided at national level. The removal of cooperation as a 
‘duty’ will hopefully lead to more constructive cooperation that does not focus on how to 
distribute housing. 
8(a). Do you agree that a standard method for establishing housing requirements (that takes 
into account constraints) should be introduced? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting 
statement.] 
Yes

The Council would support a housing requirement that truly takes into account the constraints of 
the Borough as well as being in line with household projections which have consistently 
demonstrated lower projections in 2016 and 2018 household projections. It will be essential that 
the parameters used to take account of constraints are transparent and consistent. This is 
particularly important in relation to Green Belt issues, which can be a cause for delay/uncertainty 
in the plan making process. Advice can often be conflicting and confusing in this area

It is agreed that debates over the figures can be time consuming and ineffective. 

The Government has a political mandate to set an ambitious target of 300,000 new homes 
annually. 

This Council profoundly disagrees with the arbitrary imposition of the local targets that are 
emerging from both the existing and currently proposed formula for calculating the local housing 
target without taking account of the significant constraint of the green belt, fragile environmental 
habitats, historic buildings and landscapes, and climate change. Ultimately this is an arbitrary 
number that is skewing the requirement to levels that simply cannot be achieved. The Council is 
not suggesting that there shouldn’t be growth, but that perhaps it should be a more realistic 
target, particularly in the context of climate change and the issues that have arisen from the 
pandemic and the impact on the economy and high streets. Is it reasonable and realistic to push 
forward towards exponential growth particularly in the current position we find ourselves in?
8(b). Do you agree that affordability and the extent of existing urban areas are appropriate 
indicators of the quantity of development to be accommodated? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please 
provide supporting statement.]
No. A combination of indicators to determine the level of development that can be achieved is 
supported. In reference to each bullet point set out in paragraph 2.25

 the size of existing urban settlements (so that development is targeted at areas that can 
absorb the level of housing proposed). 

o How will you define which areas could ‘absorb’ more housing, Will you just target 
the areas with the largest urban settlements? Will you look at other parameters 
e.g. density, the existing character of the area – heights, bulk, massing?

 the relative affordability of places (so that the least affordable places where historic 
under-supply has been most chronic take a greater share of future development);

o This alone will focus development in the South East, affordability will need to be 
balanced with other issues. It also noted that this is not a physical constraint like 

Page 16

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



the other constraints and affordability data has no regard for the physical 
constraints in area that might limit development

 the extent of land constraints in an area to ensure that the requirement figure takes into 
account the practical limitations that some areas might face, including the presence of 
designated areas of environmental and heritage value, the Green Belt and flood risk. For 
example, areas in National Parks are highly desirable and housing supply has not kept up 
with demand; however, the whole purpose of National Parks would be undermined by 
multiple large scale housing developments so a standard method should factor this in;

o Agree all land constraints should be taken into account, including all those listed 
above.

 the opportunities to better use existing brownfield land for housing, including through 
greater densification. The requirement figure will expect these opportunities to have been 
utilised fully before land constraints are taken into account;

o Optimisation is supported but this needs to be balanced with the character of an 
area 

• the need to make an allowance for land required for other (non-residential) 
development; and 

o Agree, there is a risk that housing is being looked at in isolation. It is agreed that 
there needs to be consideration of other development types and infrastructure 
that will serve housing. Businesses and commercial uses, schools, health services, 
playgrounds, greenspace, transport infrastructure.

• inclusion of an appropriate buffer to ensure enough land is provided to account for the 
drop off rate between permissions and completions as well as offering sufficient choice to 
the market.

o It is difficult to see how effective a buffer is. Whilst it provides an element of 
contingency, there is evidence of plenty of applications being permitted and not 
being implemented. Ultimately the market determines implementation rate. 

9(a). Do you agree that there should be automatic outline permission for areas for substantial 
development (Growth areas) with faster routes for detailed consent? [Yes / No / Not sure. 
Please provide supporting statement.] 
Not sure

It is difficult to see the difference or benefits of automatic outline permission for identified growth 
area that is different from the existing system. At present, the allocation of sites in local plan 
establishes the principle of development. The difference between the existing and proposed 
system is that we are required to allocate every inch of the Borough/District. Once the principle 
has been established in Local Plans then developers usually go directly to a full planning 
permission without going to outline first in any case.
9(b). Do you agree with our proposals above for the consent arrangements for Renewal and 
Protected areas? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
Yes

The proposals include:
Renewal areas, 

o where areas that would be areas of general presumption in favour of 
development  

o pre-specified forms of development allowed
o faster planning application process in the context of local plan description

Protected area
o planning applications will determine whether proposals go forward.

Page 17

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



This appears to be largely the same as it is now, although ‘renewal areas’ are what most would 
consider as ‘the built up area’, where most types of development would be supported provided it 
had good sustainable transport options and other detailed matters being resolved. Protected 
areas are all areas which are constrained in some form or another but have just be lumped in 
together, and would not appear to change at all. 

There are parts of the Government proposals that appear to be reinventing a system but with no 
clear reason why. 
9(c). Do you think there is a case for allowing new settlements to be brought forward under the 
Nationally Significant Infrastructure Projects regime? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide 
supporting statement.]
Not sure

The Council has little experience with respect to the scale of development as New Towns, but is 
aware of Development corporations working effectively elsewhere such as Oxfordshire, 
Cambridge. The Council does not have any further comments on this.
10. Do you agree with our proposals to make decision-making faster and more certain? [Yes / 
No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]
A cautious yes

We are cautious because the proposal has no regard to the complexities involved and resources of 
planning authorities, development management officers are under constant pressure to make 
decisions under tight deadlines. Officers will often have caseloads of 50- 80 applications at a time. 
The language used to describe the existing system as officers trying to get around determination 
deadlines through extensions and the proposed introduction of a refund where decisions aren’t 
taken in the new ‘statutory’ time frames is frankly unfair to officers who work tirelessly to get 
most applications done within the current ‘non-statutory’ timeframes. A statutory timeframe 
could potentially lead to poor decisions being made in order to meet the deadline. 

Also, despite the consultation paper describing the proposals of refunds to developers as 
incentivising local planning authorities to make decision making faster. This is in fact a penalty not 
an incentive and further reduces the capacity for Local Authority planning departments to remain 
financially sustainable and resourced which is concerning.  It will be inevitable that planning 
departments which are already stretched will experience reduced fees by way of a refund to 
developers.  These reductions will likely lead to the need for local Authorities to reduce staff 
which would be unlikely to allow good planning decisions to be made within a ‘statutory 
timeframe’.  The proposed refund to developers will result in a catch 22 scenario with planning 
departments unable to meet the aspirations proposed within this White Paper and would also be 
at odds with aspirations to make decision-making faster.  The drive to speed up decision making in 
planning should reasonably acknowledge and remedy the impacts that stretched resources have 
on timely decisions within planning and should consider the wider factors and contributors which 
impact on decision making.  It is deeply unfair and unreasonable to constantly blame planners for 
matters that are not the responsibility of the planning system, but one driven by the market. 

In reference to each bullet point set out in paragraph 2.39
o the greater digitalisation of the application process to make it easier for applicants, 

especially those proposing smaller developments, to have certainty when they apply 
and engage with local planning authorities. In particular, the validation of applications 
should be integrated with the submission of the application so that the right 
information is provided at the start of the process. For Spending Review, the 

Page 18

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



Government will prepare a specific, investable proposal for modernising planning 
systems in local government;

o greater digitalisation and efficiencies in how a planning application is 
submitted and validated is supported. However, again the proposals have 
little regard to operational aspects of the current system. These differ from 
authority to authority. Some authorities have Support Teams to validate 
applications and some don’t, so there is a resource element involved. If 
applicants don’t submit the correct information then they are given the 
opportunity to submit that information. Greater digitisation of the planning 
process is more a matter of how planning applications are submitted so there 
would need to be changes at the planning portal end of the process.

o A new, more modular, software landscape to encourage digital innovation and 
provide access to underlying data. This will help automate routine processes, such as 
knowing whether new applications are within the rules, which will support faster and 
more certain decision-making. We will work with tech companies and local planning 
authorities to modernise the software used for case-managing a planning application 
to improve the user-experience for those applying and reduce the errors and costs 
currently experienced by planning authorities;

o This is supported, however this is likely to take some time and adequate 
training to establish a new system. Local authorities have their own software 
that vary from authority to authority and it will be difficult to consolidate 
these into a single national model. The skillset in each authority will also vary. 
At present local authorities fund their own systems and as such there is 
varying capacity and IT systems which would undoubtedly need to be brought 
up to date to be fit for purpose and facilitate digital innovation - will this new 
software be directly funded by central Government? The cost of developing 
something entirely new would be astronomical and not guaranteed to work.

o shorter and more standardised applications. The amount of key information required 
as part of the application should be reduced considerably and made machine-
readable. A national data standard for smaller applications should be created. For 
major development, beyond relevant drawings and plans, there should only be one 
key standardised planning statement of no more than 50 pages to justify the 
development proposals in relation to the Local Plan and National Planning Policy 
Framework;

o The amount of information needs to be proportionate to the development 
being proposed. Whilst described as shorter and more standardised in the 
consultation, it is hard to see how this could work. How will one ensure that 
the ‘standardised planning statement’ contains the complete and necessary 
information required? Machine readable doesn’t necessarily mean it is able to 
‘interpret’ that the information is complete. If you have a form which requires 
certain information to be filled in, the software may be able to recognise the 
box has been filled in but not whether the information is relevant or correct. 

o data-rich planning application registers will be created so that planning application 
information can be easily found and monitored at a national scale, and new digital 
services can be built to help people use this data in innovative ways

o This is supported, however this is likely to take some time to establish. It is a 
huge logistical task and it should not be underestimated how long it will take.

o data sets that underpin the planning system, including planning decisions and 
developer contributions, need to be standardised and made open and digitally 
accessible;

Page 19

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



o This is supported, data is available at the moment but only to those who pay a 
subscription 

o a digital template for planning notices will be created so that planning application 
information can be more effectively communicated and understood by local 
communities and used by new digital services;

o Not entirely sure what is meant by this but a digital notice is supported if the 
surrounding site can accommodate this format however other formats may 
still be required to address equality issues

o greater standardisation of technical supporting information, for instance about local 
highway impacts, flood risk and heritage matters. We envisage design codes will help 
to reduce the need for significant supplementary information, but we recognise there 
may still need to be site specific information to mitigate wider impacts. For these 
issues, there should be clear national data standards and templates developed in 
conjunction with statutory consultees;

o the point above is repeated, whilst the proposed system is described as  
simplified, it is difficult to see how this could work standardise all the 
information. You can standardise a form and the information required, but 
that does not mean that data provided is relevant or complete. Also these 
assessments may not necessarily fall easily into standard boxes. It is forcing 
issues of subjectivity into objectivity. 

o clearer and more consistent planning conditions, with standard national conditions to 
cover common issues;

o this is generally supported, however some instances flexibility should be 
allowed to amend conditions so they are locally specific

o a streamlined approach to developer contributions, which is discussed further under 
Pillar Three;

o see response to Q23
o the delegation of detailed planning decisions to planning officers where the principle 

of development has been established, as detailed matters for consideration should be 
principally a matter for professional planning judgment.

o This is a significant divergence from the existing system. The White Paper 
proposals suggesting a more centralised decision making framework and the 
gradual erosion of local democracy and decision making on planning issues. 
This is not supported.

11. Do you agree with our proposals for accessible, web-based Local Plans? [Yes / No / Not sure. 
Please provide supporting statement.]
Yes

Proposals to make Local Plans more accessible and web based is supported, with user friendly 
map based system and easily accessible data however this will be an significant logistical task. The 
proposal of ‘pilots’ to test the new technology is supported but again, the amount of time it will 
take for pilots to be up and running and issues to bed in needs to be factored into the overall 
timescales for proposed reform of the system. 

With regards to how Local Plans will be streamlined to the extent that it is a map and a set of 
rules, it is difficult to fully understand what the true benefits would be and why it necessitates a 
complete reform of the existing established system.
12. Do you agree with our proposals for a 30 month statutory timescale for the production of 
Local Plans? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]
No. 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



There appears to be little appreciation for the reasons at present why local plans take on average 
several years to complete. The length of time it takes to prepare a Local Plan reflects the 
complexities involved. The White Paper outlined streamlined process assumes all things are equal 
at every LPA, the resources available, specialist expertise available, the extent of land constraints. 
The timescales do not factor in the move for consultation to be focused at the plan making stage 
with a more streamline process at development management. The proposals appear to be 
diminishing public consultation rather than making it more meaningful as suggested. 
The suggestion is that consultation will take place twice, one at the very beginning and again 
simultaneously when the LPA submits the Local Plan to the Secretary of State. It is difficult to see 
how this level of consultation will be more effective and meaningful than the current system, 
particularly in combination with a more streamlined consultation at development management 
stage.

The 30 month deadline has little regard to consultation with statutory bodies and infrastructure 
bodies/providers, plan making requires balancing growth with the needs of the population and 
key infrastructure provisions, these are not easy decisions and these complexities reflect the 
current time taken. 

It is agreed that the alternative options outlined would risk sufficient scrutiny around plans as 
stated in the White Paper. 
13(a). Do you agree that Neighbourhood Plans should be retained in the reformed planning 
system? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
Yes

However, it is difficult to see where Neighbourhood Plans would sit in this new system. If more 
decisions and policies are to be centralised and Local Plans are to be reduced to a map with a set 
of rules and design codes then Neighbourhood Plans will have limited scope on what the 
Neighbourhood Plan could cover. If the whole planning system is being reformed then 
Neighbourhood Planning will also need reforming.
13(b). How can the neighbourhood planning process be developed to meet our objectives, such 
as in the use of digital tools and reflecting community preferences about design?
Not sure, see response to question 13(a). 
14. Do you agree there should be a stronger emphasis on the build out of developments? And if 
so, what further measures would you support? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting 
statement.]
Yes

There is currently a disconnect between permissions granted and build out rates and whilst we 
would support a stronger emphasis to build out development, it is difficult to see what measures 
can be realistically put in place to force developers to build out permissions. The introduction of 
penalties could be effective, e.g. Council tax on units that have permission but are not being 
delivered on stalled schemes.

It is evident that in the proposals in the White Paper there are no obvious answers to this 
question and hence no options are outlined. Government would rather overhaul the whole 
planning system and simplify it to an extent that makes a more attractive environment for 
development to come forward but with no proposals or options on how to ensure there is actual 
delivery taking place once permission is granted. 

Pillar Two – Planning for beautiful and sustainable places

Page 21

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



15. What do you think about the design of new development that has happened recently in 
your area? [Not sure or indifferent / Beautiful and/or well-designed / Ugly and/or poorly-
designed / There hasn’t been any / Other – please specify] 
As the planning authority for the area, good design is important to the Council, we have a design 
and conservation officer advising on design aspects on development proposals which ensures that 
development coming forward is meeting a high standard. 

The views of the general public vary considerably. Design and beauty is frequently perceived 
subjectively and creating an arbitrary set of objective criteria risks over simplifying the concept 
and undermining the outcomes we seek to achieve.
16. Sustainability is at the heart of our proposals. What is your priority for sustainability in your 
area? [Less reliance on cars / More green and open spaces / Energy efficiency of new buildings / 
More trees / Other – please specify]
Other, all of the above. 

Sustainability is a balance of social, economic and environment objectives. It has never been one 
dimensional and therefore all of the above are relevant. Other aspects of sustainability are about 
balancing growth with needs and livelihood in a sustainable manner and that is resource efficient.

The council has declared a climate emergency in the borough and is currently working on 
delivering an action plan to achieve its climate goals.

17. Do you agree with our proposals for improving the production and use of design guides and 
codes? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]
Yes

The Council supports more detailed guidance on Design however there is concern that the 
proposed overuse of design codes will lead to over prescription of how an area should be 
designed to the extent that character will be eroded through the lack of innovation with proposals 
sticking rigidly to a set of rules that may create sterile, clone environments. The proposals suggest 
a rule based system that removes any element of subjectively in order to increase speed.  
Government is choosing speed over more well thought out design proposals, despite the 
suggestion that design will be more integrated into the system.
18. Do you agree that we should establish a new body to support design coding and building 
better places, and that each authority should have a chief officer for design and place-making? 
[Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]
Yes

There needs to be a clear purpose for the new design body, is it an advisory body or is it a 
statutory body? 

The appointment of a chief officer for design in each authority is a good idea but how LPAs 
resource and fund such a role needs to be considered. We await Governments further proposals 
later this year for improving the resourcing of planning departments.
19. Do you agree with our proposal to consider how design might be given greater emphasis in 
the strategic objectives for Homes England? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting 
statement.]
Yes

This is generally supported, effectively demonstrating how Government is leading by example.

Page 22

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



20. Do you agree with our proposals for implementing a fast-track for beauty? [Yes / No / Not 
sure. Please provide supporting statement.]
No. 

It is difficult to see how one can possibly fast track for “beauty”, whilst general principles can be 
applied to achieve good design. It is not something where you can apply an algorithm and get an 
answer.

Pillar Three – Planning for infrastructure and connected places
22. When new development happens in your area, what is your priority for what comes with it? 
[More affordable housing / More or better infrastructure (such as transport, schools, health 
provision) / Design of new buildings / More shops and/or employment space / Green space / 
Don’t know / Other – please specify]
Other-All of the above

The question itself betrays a fundamental misunderstanding of the infrastructure needs 
associated with bringing forward new development. It is not a question of having one priority, the 
council has many priorities to deliver for its communities. New development needs to 
demonstrate it is sustainable development, through compliance with local policies. It is a balanced 
judgement based on all of the above.
23(a). Should the Government replace the Community Infrastructure Levy and Section 106 
planning obligations with a new consolidated Infrastructure Levy, which is charged as a fixed 
proportion of development value above a set threshold? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide 
supporting statement.] 
Yes with regard to the infrastructure levy, but we consider the need for S106 agreements in 
certain circumstances will remain.

The Council will support a national infrastructure levy in place of the current system. This would 
ensure consistency and certainty. To ensure viability is not affected a strategic assessment should 
be carried out. A mixed rate is supported over a flat rate, this would allow consideration of the 
area and type of development. The Council supports a greater range of development being 
subject to the levy but perhaps set at different rates to take into account the social value of 
proposals adds.

The Council does not agree that affordable housing should be included in the levy, this should be 
continued to be secured separately. If affordable housing is to be secured through the same levy, 
then monies toward it should be at least be at the existing levels and be ring-fenced to ensure it is 
used to deliver affordable housing.

That said, under the current system, affordable housing contributions are often negotiated 
downwards due to viability issues. Support would be given to a system which defines affordable 
housing contributions as a fixed cost of development. This would help provide local authorities 
and their communities with certainty that development will deliver much needed affordable 
housing, which has not historically been the case. Any system would need to be transparent and 
fair to avoid unnecessary negotiation and delay. Being a tax, CIL is considered to have been 
successful in sense.
23(b). Should the Infrastructure Levy rates be set nationally at a single rate, set nationally at an 
area-specific rate, or set locally? [Nationally at a single rate / Nationally at an area-specific rate 
/ Locally] 

Page 23

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



The Council will support a national infrastructure levy in place for the current system where the 
revenues will continue to be collected and spent locally. A mixed rate is supported over a flat rate, 
this would allow consideration of the area and type of development. The Council supports a 
greater range of development being subject to the levy but perhaps set at different rates to take 
into account the social value of proposals adds.
23(c). Should the Infrastructure Levy aim to capture the same amount of value overall, or more 
value, to support greater investment in infrastructure, affordable housing and local 
communities? [Same amount overall / More value / Less value / Not sure. Please provide 
supporting statement.] 
The Council would support an infrastructure levy that captures more value than currently does. 
Whilst it agrees that developers should be confident that schemes achieve a sufficient profit, the 
revenues gained through the levy at present is simply not enough to deliver the infrastructure 
needed. Local authorities have to make difficult decisions on where to spend the limited funds. 
23(d). Should we allow local authorities to borrow against the Infrastructure Levy, to support 
infrastructure delivery in their area? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.]
Not sure.
24. Do you agree that the scope of the reformed Infrastructure Levy should capture changes of 
use through permitted development rights? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting 
statement.]
Yes, Development which places increased pressure on local infrastructure should make a 
contribution. This is fair and reasonable. Therefore changes of use through permitted 
development rights which increase pressure on infrastructure should be included.
That said, it is difficult to answer as there’s insufficient detail to how the new Levy will operate. 
However, what this question highlights is the problem with trying to combine the CIL with S106, 
whilst CIL is a straightforward tariff based on the increase of floorspace, S106 can secure other 
infrastructure on a case by case basis depending on the impact the proposal would have.
25(a). Do you agree that we should aim to secure at least the same amount of affordable 
housing under the Infrastructure Levy, and as much on-site affordable provision, as at present? 
[Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
Yes, if affordable housing is to be secured via the new levy then it should secure at least the same 
amount of affordable housing and on site provision that it does at present.

That said, we believe that affordable housing should remain a separate development contribution 
to the standard levy.
25(b). Should affordable housing be secured as in-kind payment towards the Infrastructure 
Levy, or as a ‘right to purchase’ at discounted rates for local authorities? [Yes / No / Not sure. 
Please provide supporting statement.] 
Not sure what an “in-kind payment” is defined as.

We need genuinely affordable housing to be delivered “in-kind” on site to meet our local criteria.

The Council believes that affordable housing should remain a separate development contribution 
to the standard levy- this will avoid difficulty in trying to marry a standardised system with one 
that requires further consideration and negotiation of other issues.
25(c). If an in-kind delivery approach is taken, should we mitigate against local authority 
overpayment risk? 53 [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
See response above
25(d). If an in-kind delivery approach is taken, are there additional steps that would need to be 
taken to support affordable housing quality? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting 
statement.]
See response above.

Page 24

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



26. Should local authorities have fewer restrictions over how they spend the Infrastructure 
Levy? [Yes / No / Not sure. Please provide supporting statement.] 
Yes

Fewer restrictions would be supported. Local authorities are responsible public bodies and should 
have the freedom to spend the levy receipts on capital or revenue projects as they see fit in for 
their areas.  There should be a clear idea what the priorities are and where funds will be focused, 
otherwise there is a risk that there would be an uncoordinated approach to spending funds on 
schemes that may not achieve the greatest benefits.

The problem is not so much the restrictions on how the revenue is spent but that there simply is 
not enough funds being collected to make sufficient dent on the wide range of infrastructure 
needed.
26(a). If yes, should an affordable housing ‘ring-fence’ be developed? [Yes / No / Not sure. 
Please provide supporting statement.]
The Council believes that affordable housing should remain a separate development contribution 
to the standard levy. If it is to form part of the standard infrastructure levy then ‘Yes’, it should be 
‘ring-fenced’ to ensure that affordable housing is delivered.
27. Do you have any views on the potential impact of the proposals raised in this consultation 
on people with protected characteristics as defined in section 149 of the Equality Act 2010?
No comment. MHCLG should undertake the necessary assessment of the impact of its 
proposals.

Page 25

Agenda Item 4
Appendix 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26


	Agenda
	4 White Paper: Planning for the Future
	White Paper: Planning for the Future Appendix 1


